
 

   

 
 
 

 
Notice of Decision Session - Executive Member for Education, 
Children and Young People 
 
To: Councillor Rawlings 

 
Date: Tuesday 26 September 2017 

 
Time: 4.00 pm 

 
Venue: The Auden Room - Ground Floor, West Offices (G047) 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Notice to Members – Post Decision Calling In: 
 
Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in any item* on 
this agenda, notice must be given to Democratic Services by 4:00pm 
on Thursday 28 September 2017. 
  
*With the exception of matters that have been the subject of a 
previous call in, require Full Council approval or are urgent which are 
not subject to the call-in provisions. Any called in items will be 
considered by the Corporate and Scrutiny Management Policy and 
Scrutiny Committee. 
 

 
Written representations in respect of items on this agenda should be 
submitted to Democratic Services by at 5.00pm on Friday 22 
September 2017. 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

1. Declarations of Interest    
 At this point in the meeting, the Executive Member is asked to 

declare: 

 any personal interests not included on the Register of 
     Interests 

 any prejudicial interests or 

 any disclosable pecuniary interests 
which he might have in respect of business on this agenda. 
 

2. Minutes   (Pages 1 - 2) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of the decision session held on 

28 March 2017. 
 

3. Public Participation    
 At this point in the meeting, members of the public who have 

registered their wish to speak at the meeting can do so. The 
deadline for registering is at 5.00pm on Monday 25 September 
2017. 
 
Members of the public may register to speak on an item on the 
agenda or an issue within the Executive Member’s remit. 
 
Filming, Recording or Webcasting Meetings 
Please note this meeting may be filmed and webcast and that 
includes any registered public speakers, who have given their 
permission. This broadcast can be viewed at 
http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts. 
 
Residents are welcome to photograph, film or record Councillors 
and Officers at all meetings open to the press and public. This 
includes the use of social media reporting, i.e. tweeting. Anyone 
wishing to film, record or take photos at any public meeting 
should contact Democratic Services (contact details at the foot of 
this agenda) in advance of the meeting. 
 
The Council’s protocol on Webcasting, Filming & Recording of 
Meetings ensures that these practices are carried out in a 
manner both respectful to the conduct of the meeting and all 
those present. It can be viewed at: 
http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_f
or_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_201
60809.pdf 
 
 
 

http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809.pdf
http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809.pdf
http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809.pdf


 

4. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Executive Member considers 

urgent under the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

5. Hosting the North and Humber Regional 
Adoption Agency  (Pages 3 - 18) 

 

 This report provides an update on progress towards the 
establishment of the North and Humber Regional Adoption 
Agency, further to the in principle agreement by Executive on 9th 
February 2017. 
 

Democratic Services 
Contact Details: 
Telephone – (01904) 551088 
Email – democratic.services@york.gov.uk 
 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting Angela 
Bielby, Democracy Officer  
 

 Registering to speak 

 Written Representations 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

mailto:democratic.services@york.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Decision Session - Executive Member for 
Education, Children and Young People 

Date 28 March 2017 

Present Councillor Rawlings 

  

 

14. Declarations of Interest  
 

The Executive Member was asked to declare any personal 
interests not included on the Register of Interests, any 
prejudicial interests or any disclosable pecuniary interests that 
he may have in respect of business on the agenda.  No 
additional interests were declared. 
 
 

15. Minutes  
 

Resolved: That the minutes of the Decision Session held on 24 
January 2017 be approved and signed as a correct 
record. 

 
 

16. Public Participation  
 

It was reported that there had been one registration to speak at 
the meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme. 
 
Ms Gwen Swinburn spoke in respect of agenda item 4 – Capital 
Programme.  She stated that whilst she welcomed the 
transparency demonstrated in the annexes that had been 
provided with the report she was, however, concerned at the 
Council’s Key Decision protocols and how these were applied, 
particularly in respect of the capital programme.     
 
 

17. Education, Children and Young People's Capital 
Programme: Proposed School Maintenance Schemes in 
2017/18  
 

The Executive Member considered a report which provided 
details of the new school maintenance schemes being 
developed for 2017/18 and which sought approval for this 

Page 1 Agenda Item 2



proposed programme, subject to final confirmation of the 
resources available. 
 
Officers gave details of how the schemes had been scored and 
ranked.  The Executive Member was informed that as the 
Capital Maintenance funding from the Department for Education 
(DfE) had not yet been announced, a prudent approach had 
been taken.  Details were also given of the other funding on 
which the programme had been based, including that within the 
council’s overall Capital Strategy for 2017/18 and resources 
from Section 106 receipts. 
 
The Executive Member sought clarification as to the position if 
the DfE funding was less than had been anticipated.  Officers 
stated that a prudent approach had been taken and that a small 
contingency had also been included.  There was also the option 
to vire from the basic need funding if necessary.  As the costs 
were based on pre-tender prices, approval for the schemes was 
subject to the overall resources being available.   
 
The Executive Member stated that he was pleased to support 
the schemes suggested and, if funding was available to enable 
additional schemes to be carried out, these should be included 
based on the priority ranking. 
 
Resolved: (i) That the proposed programme of maintenance 

schemes, as detailed in the report, be agreed 
subject to final affordability once overall 
funding and detailed cost estimates are 
available. 
 

(ii) That, should the resources available exceed  
the schemes that have been approved, further 
schemes be included based on the priority 
ranking. 
 

Reason: To facilitate the delivery of the capital 
programme. 

 
 
 
 
 

Councillor Rawlings – Executive Member 
[The meeting started at 4.00 pm and finished at 4.15 pm]. 

Page 2



 

  
 

   

 
Decision Session – Executive Member for 
Education, Children and Young People 
 

19 September 2017 

Report of the Assistant Director – Childrens Specialist Services 
 

Hosting the North and Humber Regional Adoption Agency  
 
Summary 

 
1. On 9th February 2017, the Executive considered a report outlining 

proposals for the establishment of a North and Humber Regional 
Adoption Agency [RAA] comprising the six existing local authority 
adoptions agencies [North Yorkshire CC, City of York, Hull, East Riding 
CC, North East Lincs. and North Lincs.] in this region. 
 

2. At this meeting, the Executive agreed ‘in principle’ to the establishment of 
a North and Humber Regional Adoption Agency  to be known as One 
Adoption North and Humber [OAN&H] as a shared service with City of 
York as the host local authority. 

 
3. This report provides an update on progress towards the establishment of 

the North and Humber Regional Adoption Agency, further to the in 
principle agreement by Executive on 9th February 2017. 

 
4. The North and Humber RAA will be one of three RAAs in the Yorkshire 

and Humber region, alongside West Yorkshire and South Yorkshire. 
These RAAs will deliver adopter recruitment; timely linking of children 
with a suitable adoptive family and adoption support to the child and 
family.  
 

5. The RAAs will jointly commission some services via a shared regional 
“hub‟.  

 
6. It is important to state that local authorities will retain responsibility for the 

plan for adoption for a child and for the agreement to a child’s match with 
an adoptive family.  

 

Page 3 Agenda Item 5



7. Following the in principle agreement on 9th February, the Assistant 
Directors of the six local authorities worked on the details of the delivery 
model for the RAA, drawing on the current success and effectiveness of 
the partner local authority adoption services (all judged to be good or 
outstanding by Ofsted) and feedback from adopters regarding the 
importance of locally delivered services.  
 

8. They concluded that a strength based delivery model would best meet 
the particular needs of service users in the North and Humber. It is 
therefore proposed that the North and Humber RAA will retain adoption 
staff within each local authority and deliver a single adoption service 
through the creation of a Head of Agency and three Service Managers 
managing the entirety of the region’s adoption service. The Service 
Managers will each manage a single team covering two localities 
(consisting of paired local authorities) and report directly to the Head of 
Agency. 
 

9. The RAA will operate under the terms of a Partnership Agreement, 
which will confirm the legal and governance arrangements, the budget, 
staffing and funding contributions. Each local authority will contribute 
equally to fund the core functions of the RAA, including the Head of 
Agency with overall responsibility for the performance of the RAA. The 
first annual contribution will be £40,000 per local authority. 
 

10. Operational accountability will be to the Leadership and Management 
Board, comprising of senior officers delegated by the Director of 
Children Services for each local authority, with representation drawn 
from key stakeholders, including adoptive parents and the voluntary 
sector. 

  
11. The Head of Agency will report to the Leadership and Management 

Board and will be line managed by City of York’s Assistant Director 
Children’s Specialist Services.  

 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive Member is asked to: 

 
12. Confirm the decision to establish a North and Humber Regional 

Adoption Agency, to be known as ‘One Adoption North and Humber’, 
from the amalgamation of the adoption services of East Riding, North 
Yorkshire, North East Lincolnshire, North Lincolnshire, Hull and York 
councils. 

Page 4



 
13. Confirm City of York as host local authority.   

 
14. Approve the RAA delivery model as a single service through the 

creation of a Head of Agency and three Service Managers managing 
the entirety of the regional adoption service. The Head of Agency will 
report to the Leadership and Management Board and line manage the 
Service Managers, who will each manage a single team covering two 
localities (paired local authorities).  
 

15. Authorise York’s Director Children, Education &Communities, in 
consultation with the Assistant Director of Legal Services, to approve 
the terms of the detailed partnership agreement.  
 

Reason:  
 

16. The recommendations outline a pro-active response to Government 
requirements, in a cost effective way that builds on the existing 
strengths of the partner local authorities. 
 

 Background 
 
National Policy Context 
 
17. The Education and Adoption Act 2016 makes provision for joint 

arrangements to carry out local authority adoption functions in England, 
with the Secretary of State having the power to direct one or more local 
authorities to make arrangements for any or all of their specified 
adoption functions to be carried out on their behalf by a named local 
authority or by another adoption agency. 
 
The issues that the government sought to address were: 
 

18. Inefficiencies: in that the system was fragmented with around 180 
agencies, both local authority and voluntary adoption agencies, 
recruiting and matching adopters for 5000 children per year. The 
majority of agencies are operating at a very small scale and this hinders 
strategic planning and economies of scale 
 

19. Timeliness of placing children: whilst there had been significant 
improvement in the performance of local authorities in placing children 
swiftly with adoptive families, it was felt that there was further progress 

Page 5



that could be made. This was particularly the case with harder to place 
children, often older, within a sibling group or with a disability 

 
20. Adopter recruitment: whilst there had been improvement in both the 

number of adopters recruited and the timescales to achieve this, many 
of these adopters were less willing to consider those children who are 
harder to place 
 

21. Adoption support: the help that was offered to families after adoption is 
the responsibility of local authorities  but it was fragmented and 
characterised by a combination of in-house and spot purchased 
arrangements, with often significant variations between local authority 
areas 

 
Yorkshire and Humber Regional Response 
 
22. The Yorkshire and Humber region, with a strong history of working 

together as the Yorkshire and Humberside Adoption Consortium, in 
August 2015 submitted an expression of interest to the Department of 
Education (DfE) to be one of the pioneer projects. This resulted in DfE 
funding project work throughout Yorkshire and Humber to look at 
developing a ‘hub and spoke’ model of delivering adoption services. 
 

23. The plan put forward and supported by the DfE was for three RAAs: 
South Yorkshire, North and Humber and West Yorkshire, as spokes 
delivering adopter recruitment, assessment, family finding and adoption 
support at a local level. These spokes would be connected by a hub 
that would provide the coordination of a regional matching register, 
performance reporting, specialist training, practice sharing and regional 
scale commissioning. The role of the hub would develop in line with the 
needs of the developing RAAs. 
 

24. The Yorkshire and Humber project was selected as one of five 
“Demonstration Projects‟ by the DfE (out of nineteen) projects in 
England and has received additional funding to develop the project 
through to the establishment of the three RAAs. 
 

North and Humber sub regional response: 
 

25. The six local authorities in the North and Humber region, East Riding, 
North Yorkshire, North Lincolnshire, North East Lincolnshire, York and 
Hull, recognised that working collaboratively provided a significant 
opportunity to respond to the national agenda. By delivering a single 

Page 6



service whilst maintaining functions at a regional and local level, 
partners envisaged delivering a faster and more cost efficient process 
for finding adoptive families for children, whilst achieving some 
economies of scale. The new service will improve outcomes and ensure 
better value from commissioning. 
 

26. The RAA will work in partnership with children’s social work services in 
each local authority. The local authority will retain the corporate 
parenting responsibility for looked after children and each local authority 
will still retain the responsibility for decisions about the planning for a 
child and the match with an adoptive family. In York, this will remain the 
responsibility of the Director of Children’s Services; delegated to the 
Assistant Director, Children’s Specialist Services. 

 
Progress to-date: 

 
27. Developing the Delivery Model - A single local authority hosted model 

for an RAA, with City of York Council as the host, was agreed in 
principle by Executive/Cabinet for all six local authorities by March 
2017. 
 

28. Significant work has progressed to explore with due diligence the legal, 
human resources, finance, IT and practice opportunities and risks. 
Through this work it has been possible to identify issues, and solutions, 
in identifying the most effective RAA arrangements for this region. 
 

29. Early preparation work for the North and Humber RAA has included the 
alignment of operational policies and processes across the six local 
authorities. This has been a key strand of the work to date and has 
helped to bring into much sharper relief the most effective model and 
governance structures for delivering the intended outcome from this 
initiative. 
 

30. The impetus has been to share and align best practice, in order to effect 
a smooth transition into an RAA. This has resulted in a shared ‘One 
Adoption’ website and marketing strategy with West and South RAAs 
and a single contact number for new enquirers, with options to select 
the caller’s “local” adoption service. There are key messages on each 
local authority’s website, with One Adoption branding and links through 
to the One Adoption website. 
 

31. Operationally there have been regular meetings that consider current 
data, processes and opportunities to develop an operating model suited 

Page 7



to delivering a single adoption service over the region’s very wide 
geographical area. 
 

32. A focus on adopters’ experiences has been integral to the agency’s 
development and an  emerging theme has been of adopters being 
interested in regionalisation but setting  a high priority on still wanting to 
feel they are in touch with a local service; likewise with young people. 
 

33. Similarly, staff feedback, though very positive around the opportunity 
the RAA offered to continue to improve practice and provide consistent 
high quality services for children and adoptive families, highlighted 
concerns regarding potential negative impact for adopters and children 
where they may lose connections with their local workers and service. 

 
34. Work has continued across all of the thematic work streams to plan for 

operational transition from six local authorities to a single service RAA, 
whilst mitigating any potential negative impact on children and adoptive 
families either during transition and beyond into the fully implemented 
model. 
 

35. Progress has been reviewed against the objectives set for the RAA both 
locally and by the DfE [Appendix 1], to ensure that the planned 
operating model is the best option and has the flexibility to adapt to the 
changing national picture regarding adoption. 
 

36. A recent Adoption Leadership Board’s ‘Adopter sufficiency’ report  
highlighting the downturn in the number of adopters being approved, 
heightened the need to identify a delivery model that incorporated 
feedback from adopters, young people, staff and other partners whilst 
remaining fully focused on the immediate need to substantially increase 
the number of available adopters. 
 

37. The need to preserve strong links with each local authority’s children’s 
service was recognised as crucial, as this ensures the systematic and 
timely consideration of adoption for all children. It also ensures that 
family finding starts immediately for those children for whom it could be 
appropriate. These critical transaction points between RAA and local 
authorities are considered to be best served by an RAA model that sits 
as close to the local authority children’s services departments as 
possible. 
 

38. It is reasonable to predict that any restructuring of services involving 
significant transfers of staff is likely to create a temporary but significant 

Page 8



dip in performance (including recruitment) prior to stabilisation of a new 
operating model. In light of the drivers discussed above, the 
development of the delivery model for this RAA has sought to minimise 
any unnecessary staff transfers and instead to maximise and exploit the 
significant existing strengths in this region. 

 
The Final Model 
 
39. Whilst the RAA model will retain adoption staff within each local 

authority, it will deliver a single service ‘One Adoption North and 
Humber’ through the creation of a Head of Agency and three Service 
Managers overseeing the entirety of the shared adoption service.  
 

40. In turn, the Service Managers will each manage a single team covering 
two localities (paired local authorities) and report directly to the Head of 
Agency [Appendix 2]  
 

41. This model facilitates the consolidation of best practice, with the Head 
of Agency having overall responsibility for the performance of the RAA, 
acting with a clear mandate from each local authority as a strong central 
leader and driver for improvement and change. 
 

42. The Head of Agency will be accountable to the Leadership and 
Management Board, comprised of the Assistant Directors from the six 
local authorities, adopters and Voluntary Adoption Agency or Adoption 
Support Agency representatives and chaired by York’s Director 
Children, Education & Communities. 
 

43. Each local authority will contribute equally to fund the core functions of 
the RAA which will include the Head of Agency; a Management 
Information Officer; a Marketing Officer; Business, financial and legal 
support to the RAA; and joint marketing and recruitment with West 
Yorkshire and South Yorkshire RAAs. The contribution will be £40000 
annually from each local authority. 

 
Consultation  
 
44. The development of these arrangements has been informed by 

extensive consultation with all relevant stakeholders including, children, 
young people and their parents and carers, prospective adopters, 
existing local authority adoption teams, colleagues from the private and 
voluntary sector and senior officers in the Department for Education 
(through an allocated coach). 

Page 9



Council Plan 
 
45. The adoption service contributes to the Council Plan 2015-19 “A focus 

on frontline services‟ and the specific aim that “Every child has the 
opportunity to get the best possible start in life‟.  
 

46. In addition, it meets an objectives of the Children and Young People’s 
Plan 2016-2020 of ensuring that children and young people who are 
looked are enabled to be: happy and healthy, safe and protected, and 
supported each step of the way to adult life. 
 

47. The adoption service is integral to the strategy of ensuring all children 
and young people who are looked after are placed in a safe, permanent 
family as soon as possible.  
 

48. The RAA will have an emphasis on the local delivery of services and 
will retain a base in each local authority office, working with the local 
authority to ensure that children’s needs are prioritised and that there is 
a sense of urgency in the planning for children regarding permanence. 
This will also ensure that families are recruited to meet children’s needs 
and that adoption support can be delivered effectively at a local level. 

 
Implications 

 
 Financial  
 
49. It is not envisaged that there will be any ongoing direct additional 

financial costs to York as the host authority. The administrative, legal 
and financial costs to support the RAA have been included in the 
contribution each local authority will make to fund the core services of 
the RAA. 
 

50. However, the effect of implementing this national policy requirement 
will, in the first two years of operation see additional local authority 
operating costs associated with the loss of income previously generated 
by the onward trading of adopters approved over capacity required for 
local need. 
 

51. A separate business case to address / mitigate these potential 
additional costs in the first two years of operation of the RAA will be 
developed. 
 

 

Page 10



 Human Resources  
 
52. The regional agency will be led by a Head of Agency, employed by York 

on behalf of all six local authorities. The Head of Agency was appointed 
in advance of the formal establishment of the RAA to take a key role in 
developing the RAA model.  
 

53. The post has been initially funded by the DfE grant, but going forward 
will be funded from the contributions from the six local authorities. 
 

54. Whilst the Head of Agency will have a strategic and professional 
practice leadership role, direct line management and employer 
responsibilities for the agency staff will remain with the individual 
constituent local authorities.  
 

 Equalities  
 

55. An equality impact assessment will be completed within the first six 
months of the new agency being fully operational. 
 

 Legal  
 

56. A Partnership Agreement is being developed in conjunction with each of 
the six local authorities’ legal advisors. This will include a service 
specification, detailing services to be provided, and how these are to be 
funded by the partners, as well as the arrangements for operational 
oversight. 
 

57. Under the Local Government Act 2000 that allows delegation of 
executive functions, the five other local authorities will delegate 
responsibility for approval of adopters to York’s adoption agency, where 
this will be delegated to the Head of Agency.  
 

 Crime and Disorder  
 

58. There are no Crime and Disorder implications. 
 

 Information Technology  
 

59. The DfE has provided initial grant funding to support the development 
and implementation of a Management Information and performance 
reporting system designed to meet the needs of the RAA.  
 

Page 11



 Property  
 

60. The Head of Agency and some central staff will be located in West 
Offices; the number is likely to be similar to that of York’s current 
adoption staff located in West Offices. The majority of RAA staff will be 
located in the offices of the other five local authorities. 
 

Risk Management 
 
The main risks and benefits are outlined below: 
 
Reputational 
 
61. Benefits: Enhancement of York’s reputation as leader and innovator in 

the field of social care provision. 
 

62. Risks: that the RAA does not perform to expectations. In these 
circumstances the host may attract criticism. In mitigation there will be a 
robust business and performance tracking system established, with 
regular reporting by the Head of Agency to York’s Assistant Director 
Children’s Specialist Services. This will ensure that any emerging 
issues can be proactively managed. 
 

63. The Corporate Director of Children, Education and Communities will 
report to CMT on a quarterly basis regarding the performance of the 
RAA. 

 
 Financial 
 
64. Benefits: Hosting the RAA could build business local capacity and 

reputation for York as a provider of choice for the leadership of other 
shared service arrangements in the region.  
 

65. Risks: Though the delivery model does not include shared budgets, 
there is a commitment to jointly finance some posts and functions 
identified as ‘core’ to the RAA. This shared financial responsibility will 
be articulated in the Partnership Agreement, which will clarify shared 
liability for staff employed by York on behalf of the RAA and that any 
contracts procured on behalf of the partner local authorities will be their 
responsibility if the contracts were to outlive the RAA. 

 
 
 

Page 12



Operational 
 
66. Benefits: The benefits of this delivery model are that it builds and 

improves on existing relationships for co-working and co-production 
between the local authorities so that best practice can be extended 
across all.  
 

67. It maintains local links, which adopters and staff highlighted as key for 
the RAA, whilst also retaining the key close connection between 
adoption workers and children’s teams. The operational model 
minimises disruption to service delivery and retains focus on 
recruitment of sufficient adopters, family finding for children and 
providing adoption support. It is a flexible model that allows response to 
changes in market and regulations to be managed more quickly without 
having to lose or recruit staff as demand changes. It is a good basis for 
further integration if proven of value. 
 

68. Risks: As the delivery model is based on paired local authorities 
combining services, there is could be a risk to the overall coherence of 
a regional agency if paired local authorities were to begin to operate as 
‘silos’ rather than taking a ‘whole agency’ view. This can be mitigated by 
the Head of Agency and Leadership and Management Board clearly 
articulating a regional view and closely monitoring operational practice 
across the RAA to ensure consistency with this. 

 

Page 13



Contact Details 
 
Author: 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
 

Author’s name  
 
Eoin Rush 
 
Title 
 
Assistant Director – Childrens 
Specialist Services 
 
Dept Name 
 
Children, Education and 
Communities 
 
Tel No. 
 
01904 554211 
 

Chief Officer’s name  
 
Jon Stonehouse 
 
Title 
 
Director of Children, Education and 
Communities 
 

Report 
Approved 

 
Date 12/09/17 

 
 

    

Specialist Implications Officer(s)  List information for all 
 
Implication ie Financial   Implication ie Legal 
Name     Name 
Title      Title 
Tel No.     Tel No. 
 

Wards Affected:  List wards or tick box to indicate all All tick 

 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
Background Papers: 
 
Annexes 
 

Appendix 1 - Evaluation of delivery model against DfE requirements of an 
RAA 
 

Appendix 2 - North and Humber RAA model 
 

Page 14



Appendix 1 

Evaluation of delivery model against DfE requirements of an RAA 
 

The DfE’s ‘Adoption a vision for change’ outlined the core aims for an RAA, which 

the delivery model has been evaluated against (DfE requirements in bold): 

 Decisions about placements are always made in children’s best 
interests. Quality of care and stability of placement are rightly prioritised 
by decision makers whenever they make decisions about a child’s 
future. Adoption is pursued determinedly when it is the right option for a 
child.  

This model will ensure that the systems already established in each local authority to 
ensure that adoption considered as a permanence option for all children and where 
selected robustly pursued, can be retained and strengthened. 
  

 Delivery has at its heart innovation and practice excellence. Systems are 
designed around the needs of children, free from bureaucratic barriers 
that do not add value, and draw on the best of both the statutory and 
voluntary sectors.   
 

The model allows resources to remain focussed on practice and service 
improvement rather than be re directed to the bureaucratic issues attendant on 
restructuring services. 
 

 Social workers are highly skilled professionals who make high quality, 
evidence based decisions and do not tolerate damaging delay for 
children in their care. Social workers are part of an expert, confident 
workforce with the knowledge and skills to make and pursue complex 
and challenging decisions. Once a decision for adoption has been 
made, the adoption plan is progressed swiftly by social workers driven 
by a sense of urgency. 
   

The model will build on the existing good practice by social workers across the six 
local authorities. Adoption social workers’  anxieties/concerns about any negative 
impact of a restructure on their current work will be removed, Instead opportunities 
will be provided for workers to come together to share practice and design 
improvements to services. Networking events will be set up that will build 
relationships between workers across the local authorities, making it easier to 
establish productive working relationships around family finding. 

 

 Matches are made without unnecessary delay. RAAs provide a large 
pool of adopters for every child in need of a new family. Where a match 
is not immediately available within the RAA, the search is extended 
nationally without delay. 
 

This model will enable resources to be concentrated on devising/implementing a 

shared effective tracking and family finding system. This will not necessitate every 

worker being on the same IT case management system, so workers can remain on 

Page 15



Appendix 1 

their local authority’s system rather than have to be trained to use a different one. 

The tracking and family finding system should be able to immediately flag up if there 

is no potential match within the RAA so that a search can be conducted via the 

national adoption register.  

 Every adoptive family has access to an ongoing package of appropriate 
support with a right to a high quality, specialist assessment of need. 
This support is delivered from day one and continues throughout 
childhood whenever it is required. Adoptive families have a supportive 
relationship with their local agency and know they can turn to them for 
additional support at any time, without judgment.  
 

This model will enable families to build on the supportive relationship with the 

adoption workers in their local authority whilst also enabling these workers to deliver 

adoption support services with adoption workers in other local authorities. The 

existing expertise and skills in adoption support work can be shared across all local 

authorities, enhancing practice and giving opportunities for innovative service 

delivery across all local authorities and with Voluntary sector partners. 

 The voice of adopters and their children is at the heart of national and 
local policy decision making and delivery of services. The views of 
adopters and adopted children are demonstrably used in the shaping 
and co-production of local services and help to inform national policy 
developments.  
 

The model will ensure that adopters and children can be involved in the co-

production of local services by maintaining the link with the local authority. The RAA 

will actively promote adopters engagement and feedback on this via the pan –

regional ‘Hub’ into national developments. 

 

Page 16



Appendix 2 

North and Humber RAA model 

 

 

 

1.1 FUNCTIONS WITHIN THE RAA MODEL 

 

1.2 LEADERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT BOARD – TERMS OF REFERENCE (TBC) 

1. Recommendation is that the full board meets quarterly with partners including VAA/ASA and 
Adopters 

A
cc

o
u

n
ta

b
ili

ty
 

Strategic d
irectio

n
 an

d
 d

rivin
g 

im
p

ro
vem

en
ts 

Page 17



Appendix 2 

2. Operational board meets monthly to include the Assistant Directors, Head of Agency and 
relevant partners as required 

3. Leadership and Management Board role is to set strategic direction for the Agency, agree 
delegated authority to the Head of Agency  on behalf of all Partners and sign off partnership 
agreements and budgets 

 

1.3 HEAD OF AGENCY ROLE. 

1. Manage the RAA 
2. Plan, develop and deliver services for children needing adoptive placements in line with the 

strategic direction of the Leadership and Management Board. 
3. Ensure sufficiency of  adoptive families to meet the needs of children needing placements  
4. Plan, develop and deliver services for children and families needing adoption support services in 

line with the  strategic direction of the Leadership and Management Board 
5. Work with the Assistant Directors for  the 6 local authorities, Elected Members for these 

authorities and  other agencies to maximise the life chances of children needing adoption and 
adopted children 

6. Ensure the highest standards of practice are developed and staff are supported to achieve the 
highest levels of professional practice. 

7. Ensure services are delivered in accordance with statutory frameworks and develop the Agency’s 
guidelines and procedures to reflect these 

8. Deliver a cost effective service to an agreed budget and manage resources in line with this.  
 

1.4 SERVICE MANAGER ROLE 

1. Provide key local leadership and management for teams of adoption social workers. 
2. Ensure better outcomes against professional standards within the context of resource 

availability. 
3. Ensure effective delivery of a high standard of social work centred on the needs of children and 

young people. 
4. Ensure support available to Agency Decision makers and ensure efficient operation of Panel 

processes. 
5. Implementation robust performance management processes and ensure effective reporting 

through management information systems. 
6.  Work effectively with the Head of Agency and other Service Managers to ensure that the service 

works effectively, innovatively and collaboratively across the region with partners. 
 

Page 18


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Hosting the North and Humber Regional Adoption Agency
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2


